
FPMgroup ____________ Engineering and Environmental Science 

An Olgoonik" i~mpany 

September 15, 2021 
Mr. Payson Long 
Division of Environmental Remediation 
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
625 Broadway 
Albany, NY 12233-7013 

Re: Remediation Report - Final 
Liberty Industrial Finishing Site, NYSDEC #152108 
500-550 Suffolk Avenue, Brentwood, NY 
FPM File #13899-21-01 

Dear Payson: 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

640 Johnson Avenue 
Suite 101 

Bohemia, NY 11716 
631-737-6200 

Fax 631-737-2410 

FPM Group, Ltd. (FPM) has prepared this final remediation report on behalf of our client, 550 Liberty 
Plaza, LLC, to document the completion of remedial activities at the above-referenced property in 
accordance with the February 26, 2021 Supplemental Work Plan and our subsequent discussion. This 
work was also performed in accordance with applicable portions of the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC)-approved Site Management Plan (SMP) for the property, 
including the Field Sampling Plan (FSP) and Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP). The five remedial 
areas where soil removal was completed are shown on the attached Figure 1-Site Plan. 

The initial remedial activities were documented in our July 6, 2021 report and included excavation and 
stockpiling of impacted soil from the remedial areas, collection and testing of end-point samples, and 
preparation and submittal of the initial remedial report. Following the initial remedial activities, there 
remained one limited area (Area 1-west sidewall) where the end-point sample exceeded the NYSDEC 
Soil Cleanup Objective (SCO) for commercial use for cadmium. This area adjoins the capped area of 
the site and as the site is proposed to be redeveloped with a commercial use that will include a paved 
parking lot in this area, it was proposed to extend the existing capped area to address this condition, as 
described in our July 6, 2021 report. 

The final remedial activities included placement of the initial cap as described above, waste 
characterization and waste disposal approval, and loading, transport and proper offsite disposal of the 
impacted soil that was previously removed from the five remedial areas. This work is documented in the 
sections below. A photolog illustrating key activities is included in Attachment A. 

Waste disposal approval, soil loading, transport, and disposal, and placement of the cap soil were 
performed by Aarco Environmental Services Corp. (Aarco) with oversight, monitoring, and reporting 
performed by FPM. 

Waste Management Procedures 

Waste characterization testing results and profiles for the soil to be disposed were submitted by Aarco to 
the Atlantic County Utilities Authority (ACUA) landfill in Egg Harbor, NJ and Conestoga landfill (via the 
Dale Transfer Facility) in Morgantown, PA and verbal waste disposal approvals were received from both 
facilities; waste disposal profiles for the materials disposed are included in Attachment B. Aarco loaded 
the stockpiled waste soil into NYS-licensed waste transport trucks on August 9, 16, and 23, 2021 for 
transport to the ACUA landfill. The soil in the last two trucks loaded on August 23, 2021 was initially 
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transported to the Dale Transfer facility and then transported and disposed at the Conestoga landfill on 
August 31, 2021. An FPM environmental professional (EP) provided oversight of the loading operations. 
Manifests were used to track waste transport and disposal; copies of the manifests and associated weight 
tickets documenting the completed disposal are included in Attachment B. A total of 7 40.12 tons of 
impacted soil from the five remedial areas were properly disposed. Photos depicting the loading process 
and condition of the stockpile area after loading was complete are included in Attachment A 

Initial Cap Placement 

An initial cap of at least one foot of clean soil was placed over the soil currently present in the cap 
extension area on August 9, 2019. Photos of the cap extension area before and after placement of the 
clean soil cap are included in Attachment A The clean soil was obtained from the area of the site noted 
as Cap Soil Borrow Area on Figure 2 - this area was previously tested during the Remedial Investigation 
(Locations B-24 and B-26) and the soil did not contain metals above the NYSDEC SCOs for commercial 
use. The FPM EP observed the clean soil placement and confirmed that at least one foot of soil was 
present over the entire capped area. 

During redevelopment it is planned to replace the initial soil cap with an asphalt pavement cap. As an 
alternative, the impacted soil beneath the initial cap may be removed under the site's Excavation Work 
Plan and the remaining soil tested to confirm that it meets the NYSDEC commercial use SCOs. The 
NYSDEC will be notified in advance of any contemplated cap modifications or additional soil removal. 

Conclusions 

Based on our observations and the waste disposal documentation, the stockpiled impacted soil has been 
completely removed from the site and properly disposed. The remedial work described in the February 
26, 2021 Supplemental Work Plan has been completed and no further work is required. 

An initial cap has been placed over the remaining soil that exceeds the NYSDEC commercial use SCO 
for cadmium, as represented by the Area 1-west sidewall sample (1-SW-west on Figures 1 and 2). The 
site is proposed to be redeveloped with a commercial use that will include a paved parking lot in this area. 
During redevelopment it is planned to replace the initial soil cap with an asphalt pavement cap unless the 
impacted soil is removed under the site's Excavation Work Plan and the remaining soil is documented to 
meet the NYSDEC commercial use SCOs. 

NYSDEC approval of the completed remedial work and initial cap is requested. 

Cc: Aaron Daniels, 550 Liberty Plaza, LLC 
Barry Cohen, Esq. 

Attachments 
SOD/sod 
S:\Liberty lndustrial\Reporting\RemediationReportFINALLibertylndustrial.docx 

Very truly yours, 

<5~ 0?~1r6: 
Step~ nie 0. Davis, PG 
Senior Project Manager 
Vice President 
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FIGURE 1 - SITE PLAN 
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FIGURE 2 – CAP EXTENSION 
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ATTACHMENT A 

PHOTOLOG 
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Photo 1:  View of the area to be capped looking 
south.  

 

Photo 2:  View of the capped area with one foot 
of clean soil cover.  

 

Photo 3:  View of stockpiled soil at the beginning 
of loading. 

 

Photo 4:  Loading Operations.  
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Photo 5:  View of stockpile at end of first day of 
loading. 

 

Photo 6:  Loading operations. 

 

Photo 7:  View of stockpile at end of second day 
of loading 

 

Photo 8:  Loading operation for the last 
stockpiled soil. 
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Photo 9:  View of former stockpile area (at middle 
left) after loading and removal of the last 
stockpiled soil. 

 



ATTACHMENT B 

WASTE DISPOSAL DOCUMENTATION 
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